## D 6.2.1.2 – Dissemination Plan Project Deliverable

Project Number	AAL-201-4-024
Project Name	Confidence
Duration	June 2012 – May 2015 (36 Months)
Coordinator	Salzburg Research Forschungsgesellschaft
	mbH
Document ID	D 6.2
<b>Release Number /Date</b>	V2/15 <sup>th</sup> November 2014
Checked and released by	Cornelia Schneider, SRFG
Document Type	Project Deliverable
Original Due Date	30 <sup>th</sup> November 2012
<b>Dissemination Level</b>	Public
Main Editor	Salzburg Research Forschungsgesellschaft
	m.b.H SRFG
<b>Contributing Partners</b>	All project partners
Reviewed by	

#### Revisions

Rev.	Date	Author	Description
0.1	30.11.2012	Cornelia Schneider	First Version
0.2	15.02.2013	Cornelia Schneider	Revision (partner input and feedback)
0.3	15.12.2013	Cornelia Schneider	Update
2	15.11.2014	Viktoria Willner	Update

#### List of Authors

Cornelia Schneider (SRFG) Cornelia Sicher (ilogs) Ralph Eichenberger (RES) Rolf Kistler (iHL) Katja Bürki (SPs) Robbert Smit (PDs) Manfred Feichtenschlager (HSa) Ileana Turcu (AAIF) Viktoria Willner (SRFG)

## Contents

Contents	
Executive Summary	
1 Introduction	
1.1 About this documen	t5
1.2 Who should read th	s document 5
1.3 How to read this do	cument
2 Confidence dissemination	n planning 8
2.1 Dissemination goals	and objectives
2.2 SWOT analysis / en	vironment 8
2.3 Dissemination strate	gy10
2.4 Target groups for di	ssemination actions10
2.5 Content for dissemine	nation12
2.6 Messages	
3 Dissemination phases, c	nannels & instruments16
3.1 Awareness	

	3.2	Understanding	16
	3.3	Action	16
	3.4	Dissemination phases and available content for dissemination	17
	3.5	Channels and instruments	18
	3.6	Publication schedule	18
4	Con	crete activities and measurement	20
	4.1	Activities and Events	20
	4.1.1	Conferences, Workshops	20
	4.1.2	Publishing Activities	22
	4.1.3	Community Events	23
	4.2	Monitoring and measuring the success of Confidence dissemination activities	24
5	Mat	erial	25
	5.1	Corporate Identity and Design	25
	5.1.1	The Confidence Logo	25
	5.1.2	Colour scheme and Typography	25
	5.2	Printed products	25
	5.2.1	Project brochure	25
	5.2.2	Project poster	26
	5.2.3	Presentation template	26
	5.2.4	Word template	26
	5.3	Digital products	26
	5.3.1	Software Prototypes	26
	5.3.2	Training Material	26
	5.3.3	Project Website(s)	26
R	eferen	ces	28

## **Executive Summary**

The Confidence project aims at providing mobility and safeguarding assistance services to people suffering from mild to moderate forms of dementia. It intends to develop a novel community-enabled mobility safeguarding assistance service that combines "assistive technologies" with "personal help". This document is the second updated version of the Confidence dissemination plan and covers the planned and already started dissemination activities.

In this document, we clarify the dissemination objectives and our strategy to reach these goals. In addition, we introduce the primary channels and communication instruments that will be used to effectively disseminate project results to our target groups: ambient assisted living community, people suffering from mild to moderate dementia (primary end-users), family carers, trusted volunteers and professional care organisations (secondary end-users). The publication schedule provides an overview on the timeline for major dissemination activities, including the production of print folders, press releases and electronic documents. Furthermore, the dissemination plan contains a list of relevant conferences and events that constitute opportunities for presenting the project and its results.

Finally, in the last section, we explain our reasoning behind the Confidence corporate identity and design, as well as the Confidence logo, and provide examples of the currently existing Confidence promotion material, including the project presentation and word template.

This document will be further complemented by the Confidence Business Plan and the Confidence Consortium IPR and Market Exploitation Terms and Conditions which will focus on our activities on how to launch Confidence onto the market.

## 1 Introduction

#### **1.1 About this document**

This deliverable outlines the Dissemination Strategy and Road Show Plan for the Confidence project. It outlines and explains how we approach effective dissemination by answering the following questions:

- What are the primary dissemination objectives and how do we want to achieve those objectives (i.e. our dissemination goals and dissemination strategy)?
- Who are the main stakeholders that have a vested interest in the project and its results (i.e. our primary dissemination targets)?
- What do we want to disseminate (i.e. what does the project deliver that's worth disseminating)?
- What are the essential messages we want to communicate?
- What are the most effective ways to reach our primary target groups (i.e. using different channels and instruments with the maximum effect, but within the constraints of our dissemination budget)?
- When do we disseminate (i.e. the timing of our dissemination efforts)?

In order to achieve our defined dissemination goals and to reach and inform the relevant target communities that should be aware of the objectives and tangible results of the Confidence project, we distinguish between three major dissemination phases:

- 1. Awareness (Phase 1),
- 2. Understanding (Phase 2), and
- 3. Action (Phase 3).

In each phase, we seek to achieve the various dissemination objectives by utilizing different dissemination methods and instruments.

This document is a detailed outline of the planned dissemination activities to both continuously inform the relevant target communities of the project results and to demonstrate the usefulness and viability of our community-enabled mobility safeguarding assistance service that combines "assistive technologies" with "personal help". This version of the dissemination plan gives an overview by answering aforementioned questions in general and defines overall dissemination activities.

#### 1.2 Who should read this document

This document is mainly intended for internal use, to establish a common understanding and agreement within the project consortium on the Confidence dissemination strategy as well as the planned dissemination and demonstration activities. It aims at spurring discussion within the consortium on possible additional measures we can take to increase the impact of our dissemination and demonstration efforts on the relevant communities to best leverage Ambient Assisted Living Joint Programme (AAL JP) and also the partners' own investment in the Confidence project.

This document is also meant to inform the AAL JP Management and assigned reviewers about the Confidence dissemination strategy and the planned dissemination and demonstration activities.

#### **1.3** How to read this document

This plan is structured into four chapters and covers the following points:

The section Dissemination Planning (**first chapter**) addresses the initially set goals and objectives as described in the Description of Work, followed by a short SWOT analysis where we tried to identify the strengths and weaknesses as well as opportunities and potential threats that we may face in carrying out our dissemination efforts. Following, we outline our strategy on how we intend to achieve the set goals, which may be best circumscribed as differentiated and strictly focussed on our target groups: ambient assisted living community, people suffering from mild to moderate dementia (primary end-users), family carers, trusted volunteers and professional care organisations (secondary end-users) who provide support to people suffering from dementia. These relevant target groups are further segmented and laid out in this chapter.

We then identify and describe in more detail the project results that will be of interest to afore mentioned target groups. Naturally, not all project results listed in the Description of Work will also be of interest to our target audiences. The timing of our dissemination activities will largely depend on the availability of interesting project results at a certain time and is of interest for our target groups.

The **second chapter** of this dissemination plan is therefore concerned with describing the different dissemination phases, the different goals for each phase and the various dissemination channels and instruments that will be utilised in each phase. This section concludes with a concrete publication schedule for promotion products (each tied to the availability of major project outputs) to be produced throughout the project.

In the **third section** we provide an overview on selected events and conferences in the Ambient Assisted Living domain but also in related domains like Ambient Intelligence, Geriatrics, Nursing and Social Media that may serve as major platforms to present the Confidence project results. In this respect, all partners will contribute to present Confidence at major events. The section also lists a series of journals and mailing lists that might be used for press announcements and if possible for submission of Confidence-related articles.

Finally, in the **last section** we introduce the Confidence corporate identity, our reasoning concerning the project logo and corporate design as well as the primary messages we will use to communicate the benefits of Confidence to the target groups. This section is further complemented by examples of already existing products of the Confidence promotion kit: the presentation and word template.

Note: The dissemination plan is further complemented by the Confidence Business Plan (a first version to be available in month 18) and the Confidence Consortium IPR and Market Exploitation Terms and Conditions (to be available in month 29) that describe our efforts and strategies on how to launch Confidence onto the market. In this respect, there is some

overlapping between the dissemination and exploitation planning, as these organisations are the natural targets of both, our dissemination as well as our exploitation activities.

## 2 Confidence dissemination planning

"The most successful dissemination strategies will be those that actively engage users and deliver what users both want and need." (Harmsworth, et al., 2000)

The Confidence project, as a mobility and safeguarding assistance service for people suffering from mild to moderate dementia, aims at providing a novel community-enabled approach that combines "assistive technologies" and "personal help" and involves different types of users (people with dementia, family members, staff of home care agencies etc.) with the attempt to find an adequately introduction of incentives for sustainable participation.

In this respect, the target groups of the Confidence project results are primary and secondary end-users and the Ambient Assisted Living community also including potential financiers like insurance companies.

As such, the Confidence dissemination strategy does not aim at a general public but specifically wants to address those target groups which are potential users of the systems as a whole (end-users) or of parts of the system (e.g. other AAL projects) and possible financier (e.g. insurance companies). Therefore, the identified dissemination mechanisms and means are highly focused and not intended to reach mass audience.

#### 2.1 Dissemination goals and objectives

In the Description of Work, we defined the following objectives with regard to project dissemination:

Dissemination of project results and raising awareness and acceptance among relevant stakeholder groups will mainly be done through traditional dissemination channels (conference presentations, posters, papers, articles (in online newsletters), forum, presentations at technology trade shows and exhibitions. Activities include: drafting a dissemination plan (dissemination objectives, strategy, relevant target groups, the content and messages to be communicated, printed and electronic dissemination products, dissemination channels, publication schedule); identifying and contacting relevant multipliers/stakeholders; designing, producing, and disseminating electronic/printed dissemination materials via mailings, the project web site, at relevant events.

#### 2.2 SWOT analysis / environment

The Confidence dissemination strategy and activities will be influenced by numerous internal and external factors. To identify and be aware of the most important factors, we conducted a short SWOT analysis, enumerating the strengths and weaknesses as well as the opportunities and threats that may have an impact on our dissemination efforts.

#### Strengths:

- The consortium is made up by acknowledged and well-regarded organisations that generally are very well networked and have a high standing within their communities
- The consortium covers the whole value network which includes technology providers, user interface providers, infrastructure providers, business developers and social care organisations (which have access to the end users and relevant communities)
- All consortium members have experiences in working in large transnational teams
- Many consortium members have experiences using the user centred design approach
- Everywhere it is possible the Confidence system builds on proven software components of the individual partners
- The company partners in Austria, Netherlands and Switzerland have experiences in sales of healthcare solutions

#### Weaknesses:

- Project results concern primary and secondary end-users and their representatives as well as the Ambient Assisted Living community: it will be a challenge to find the right balance between the messages that should be communicated to the various groups
- Due to the lack of comparative numbers, we do not have experiences with regards to measuring and quantifying the impact of our dissemination activities. At this point, it is difficult to define the quantitative targets for measuring our dissemination activities

#### **Opportunities:**

 The AAL and also the community around people suffering from dementia is a very active and well networked community. A first scan of available dementia and Alzheimer networks revealed that there is at least one in each European country. The challenge thus will be to tap into the right ones and identify the best multipliers to spread the word about the existence of Confidence. The same holds true for the AAL community

#### Threats:

- Finally, it takes a big jump from being aware of the project to actually taking action and causing demand. As Confidence aims becoming a product after the co-operative project phase it will be a great challenge to demonstrate and prove the benefits and advantages of Confidence to potential end-users and financiers like insurance companies
- As competition is fierce, with respect to the Ambient Assisted Living domain, the challenge is also to first be recognised and develop a profile as reliable mobility safeguarding assistance service for people with dementia and people seeking for safety
- It occurred in similar projects that certain users (people with dementia and/or their relatives) disapproved solutions, which supported their (emergency) situation in a way that their deficiency appears to others. This goes hand in hand with the stigmatisation

of people suffering from dementia. It is most important that the use of the mobility and safeguarding assistance service for people suffering from mild to moderate dementia does not label in an obvious way an user as invalid or sick person but gains acceptance within the community

#### 2.3 Dissemination strategy

Following Kotler and Andreasen (1996), we will use a differentiated dissemination strategy, meaning that - after identifying our main target groups and segments (see below) – we will utilise distinctive channels and instruments for each of the identified groups. Such a more concentrated dissemination effort does not aim at addressing a wide and heterogeneous audience with an undifferentiated, broad, one-serves-all message but tries to develop streamlined and tailored communication offerings for our target groups.

This approach has been chosen due to the fact that the Confidence project addresses different target groups: primary and secondary system end-users and the Ambient Assisted Living community also including potential financiers like insurance companies.

While the first target group is largely defined and delineated by its needs also written down in the end-user requirements document of Confidence, the second target group consist of a wide variety of different organisations, including organisations dealing with technology, business development, user interface design or innovations in social care.

Following a differentiated dissemination strategy, for each of these groups we will develop its distinctive message and own set of communication products, identify appropriate dissemination channels and select the appropriate instruments to best reach our target groups.

#### 2.4 Target groups for dissemination actions

As already mentioned, the dissemination activities of the Confidence project actually address two different target groups: the Ambient Assisted Living community and potential primary and secondary end-users of the system.

Having a closer look to our primary end-users we identified the following immediate surrounding:



Figure 1: Immediate surrounding of a primary end-user

With respect to potential system users the target group consists of people suffering from dementia and their immediate surrounding. An interesting sub-group for the dissemination activities in Confidence could be representatives of both people suffering from dementia and representatives of their relatives e.g. self-help groups for relatives and concerned people or organizations like Alzheimer Europe.

With regards to the Ambient Assisted Living community, we identified the following sectors, organizations and science disciplines which might be of interest for the Confidence dissemination:



Figure 2: Ambient Assisted Living Community

As Confidence aims to develop a novel community-enabled mobility safeguarding assistance service that combines "assistive technologies" with "personal help" end-user organizations like home care agencies or rehabilitation centres will be interested in project results. Furthermore test results of the community approach will be of interest for business developers. The complex software system behind the services might be of interest for computer scientists and R&D organisations. We think that the project will be very interesting for many parts of the AAL community – the picture is certainly not complete but a first idea.

#### 2.5 Content for dissemination

Yet, with regards to the project output, what has Confidence to offer that may be of interest to the identified target groups and what are the benefits to our target audiences? Concerning the concrete project results that are of interest to external (and not just internal) audiences, we can distinguish between outcomes mainly of interest and benefit to potential system users and their immediate surrounding and results that are of interest to and benefit to a wider audience – the Ambient Assisted Living community.

## Concrete project results of interest to the potential end-users and their immediate surrounding:

User needs for Confidence are collected together with people suffering from dementia and their personal environment (including relatives, home care agencies etc.). To be able to address the needs of people living in different European countries with different cultural and socio-economic backgrounds user requirements are collected in Austria, Romania and Switzerland. To ensure that the user requirements are implemented accordingly the end-users and their immediate surrounding will also be involved and consulted during the implementation phase. Much also depends on the trial phase where 25 end-users and their relatives will be involved in each country. The community building process will also be of interest for this target group – it is planned to enlarge the existing network of the elderly to be able to support the elderly in situations where help is needed. If the tests are successful Confidence will be launched onto the market and will offer people suffering from mild to moderate dementia a system which supports their mobility and let them live as independent as possible.

Concrete results for this target groups:

- A report on the end-user requirements collected using the user centred design approach
- An appropriate user interface design adapted on the real needs of the end-users
- A tested and validated prototypical system that demonstrates the functionality of Confidence
- A report on how to build up a supporting community around the elderly
- A validation of potential benefits to involve a supporting community

#### Concrete project results interesting for the AAL community:

Collecting user needs for AAL solutions is a demanding task. If users are coming from more than one country with different socio-economic backgrounds an adequate approach is

needed. Furthermore if organisations from different countries are working together on one system a system architecture that allows distributed development and guarantees the best output for the end-user has to be designed. Some of the software components might be new and innovative so that they will be of interest for different members of the AAL community. The community currency model which will be implemented and tested during the field trials will be of interest for business developers as well as for non-profit organisations in the area of AAL. Maybe the different service models which are planned are of interest for them. And last but not least the business model which will be generated throughout the project can be of interest.

Concrete results for this target groups:

- A report on the end-user requirements collected in different countries using the user centred design approach
- A report on the system architecture and its components
- A report on the field trials
- A report on community building and the implementation of the community currency model
- A report on the Confidence business model

### 2.6 Messages

What are the primary messages we want to use to communicate the Confidence benefits to our primary target groups?

When thinking about how to best convey the project benefits to our primary target groups, we will focus on the essential problems and issues that the project outcome will help to overcome.

With regards to changing mortality patterns in Europe there is an increase in incident and prevalence of chronic conditions. One challenge therefore will be the rising number of people suffering from dementia. Currently about 7.3 million Europeans between 30 and 95+ are suffering from dementia (EC 2006). By 2040 this number is expected to double (Ferri et. al. 2005). In the first stages of dementia people suffer from moderate memory loss, difficulties with time-space relationships and disorientation even in places they are familiar with. Furthermore they have troubles in handling complex problems, are increasingly confused, lose the ability to do everyday tasks and related to this, show apathy and withdraw themselves from social live (Hughes, 1982). As a result people get fearful and consequently the gradually lose their independence and mobility. Common routes and tasks become a daily challenge. People recognized that the possibilities of information and communication technologies might support the elderly in dealing with their deficiencies caused by the illness. Currently different systems exist on the market. It is possible to simply call for help in case of an emergency by pressing a button with these systems. Some of these systems have additional functions like geo-fencing (a predefined set of geographic boundaries) to automatically detect when someone leaves predefined geofence. Typically these systems are tailored to a specific market and it is not possible to adapt the system to varying models of elderly care in different countries.

By contrast the Confidence project aims at providing mobility and safeguarding assistance services which are adaptable on the individual needs of people suffering from mild to

moderate dementia. A service that combines "assistive technologies" with "personal help" is going to be developed. For this purpose a community consisting of family members, employees of home care agencies and trusted volunteers (neighbours, friends or social volunteers) will be built up. They will use information and communication technologies to communicate and provide help for people suffering from mild to moderate dementia. The mobile Confidence service is planned as "virtual companion" providing different levels of assistance which can be adapted depending on the situational needs of the patient and the degree of orientation loss. Five modules are planned:

- 1. Assistance and training at home
- 2. Virtual voice service
- 3. Virtual video service
- 4. Location tracking service
- 5. Mobile community service

#### Dissemination messages to the potential end-users and their immediate surrounding:

With regards to the users and their surrounding the basic messages of Confidence are:

- Confidence makes it easier to stay mobile and active despite the illness
- Confidence gives a feeling of security
- Confidence makes it easier to organize care
- Confidence makes it easier to support people suffering from dementia depending on the situational needs

According to these messages possible slogans for Confidence are:

- Help people use Confidence (secondary end-users)
- Stay independent use Confidence (primary end-users)
- We care for you Confidence
- Confidence your daily support
- Help.support.independence Confidence
- (Enable or Assist or) Empower people use confidence
- Support people use Confidence
- Feel confident with Confidence (primary end-users)
- Live better with Confidence (primary end-users)
- A better quality of life thanks Confidence (primary end-users)
- Change/Support lives be Confidence (secondary end-users)
- Take responsibility be/with Confidence (secondary end-users)

Slogans together with logo:

- Stay close
- Keep'm moving
- Keep moving
- Simple.safe.social.
- Always on track
- Feel free
- To go ...

#### Bylines

- We care for you.
- A way to live.
- Trust yourself
- Keeping you contacted./Stay connected.
- Orientation in time and space.
- The Guide to Freedom.
- Enjoy your live.

The slogans will be tested together with the end-users and will then be refined.

#### Dissemination messages to the AAL community

With regard to the AAL community the basic messages of Confidence are:

- Confidence makes it possible to combine "assistive technologies" and "personal help"
- Confidence makes use of the user centred design approach through all project phases
- Confidence makes it possible to develop the system in a distributed way by guaranteeing the best output for the end-users
- Confidence makes use of new payment systems and service models
- Confidence creates a set of tools for people with dementia

However, the consortium has not made a final decision on the message or messages we want to communicate to the users of Confidence. This will be later defined together with the users who are going to use Confidence to make sure it is the language they understand and speak.

## 3 Dissemination phases, channels & instruments

Within the Confidence project consortium we agreed that we will have three major dissemination phases, each with its own characteristics and different dissemination instruments to be utilized.

#### 3.1 Awareness

In the first phase of the project (M1 - M12), dissemination activities will mainly focus on delivering the Confidence message to raise awareness especially among the Confidence target groups. The focus of such activities is not so much on providing detailed knowledge about our work, but to initiate and maintain awareness among our main target groups about our activities and the major outcomes of the project that may be helpful for them in the future. Consequently, all activities in this aim at attracting attention in the project, building an identity and profile within our target communities.

The concrete objectives in this awareness phase are:

- To build an internal understanding about the Confidence dissemination objectives
- To inform the Confidence target groups in each participating country about he project in general: the project start, opportunities of the project, availability of first results and the project partners
- To implement the means and mechanisms to attract visitors, and increase and maintain constant traffic on the Confidence website

On communication channel of this first dissemination phase is the project website (currently an interim solution with project relevant data which will be substituted in the next months). Another channel is network activities undertaken by the consortium members who serve as ambassador to raise awareness for the project. This will be mainly done through presentations at conferences, meetings and workshops within the far-reaching network of the Confidence consortium members.

## 3.2 Understanding

In the second phase of the project (M13 - M 17), dissemination activities will mainly focus on increasing the understanding for our project work within the primary target groups. The prime intent is to somehow engage people with mild to moderate dementia and their relatives in the development process and recruit them to participate in the Confidence trials. Their understanding of the project's intention should be increased during this phase. This implies to demonstrate that our project has something to offer that is of genuine and direct benefit to them. Dissemination activities will focus on introducing and explaining the first project results to our target groups with special focus onto our potential system users.

As potential system users are mainly of interest in this phase we will try to reach these people directly through the end-user organizations involved in the project. They will present the ideas and benefits of Confidence within workshops and by directly contacting the potential system users.

## 3.3 Action

In the third phase of the project (M18 – M36), dissemination activities will focus on the results of the two user trials conducted in Austria, Romania and Switzerland and ideas for market exploitation of Confidence. Through the trials we aim at initiating "a change of practice resulting from the adoption of products, materials or approaches offered by the project" (Harmsworth et al., 2000, p. 3).

The prime mechanism to facilitate action among our target groups is to run two field trials and to present the Confidence solution on different events where the AAL community takes part.

## 3.4 Dissemination phases and available content for dissemination

Also with regards to the three phases of dissemination, the content focus, depth of information and its practical applicability changes. Whereas, in the first phase of raising awareness, it will be mainly the project objectives, the basic concepts of the Confidence approach, the to be established system architecture as well as the expected project results, depth, granularity and practical applicability of the information will increase in the second and third dissemination phase.

Dissemination phases	Content for dissemination						
Phase 1: Raising awareness within the target groups	<ul> <li>General project description</li> <li>Project objectives and expected results</li> <li>Basic concepts of the Confidence approach (in comparison and distinction to other mobility safeguarding assistance services)</li> <li>Distributes architecture of the Confidence system</li> <li>Model on how to build up the Confidence community</li> <li>Information on how to join the project as primary and secondary end-user for the field trials</li> <li>Contact information</li> </ul>						
Phase 2: Increasing understanding among the target groups about the project outcomes	<ul> <li>Presentation of concrete results as there are:         <ul> <li>Technology – what does Confidence offer</li> <li>First prototypes on Confidence modules</li> <li>Feedback on Confidence modules from user workshops</li> <li>First prototype of Confidence</li> <li>Agreement of primary and secondary end-users to take part in the field trials</li> </ul> </li> </ul>						
Phase 3: Conduct field trials and demonstrate the benefits of Confidence; form first concrete ideas for market	<ul> <li>Validation results (field trials)</li> <li>Feedback on community building</li> <li>Feedback on community currency model</li> <li>Feedback on different service models</li> </ul>						

exp	loitation
CAP	ontation

#### 3.5 Channels and instruments

What are the primary dissemination channels to be used in Confidence? Generally, we conceive a channel as a conduit between us, the Confidence project team and our customers and the AAL community. Generally, while the channels for distributing our message may be manifold, we will mainly use the Internet, electronic media, congresses, workshops and the people representing the Confidence project i.e. its consortium and multipliers. The following table gives an overview on the main channels we will use in the different phases of disseminating project results:

Confidence primary dissemination channels

Phase 1: Awareness	Phase 2: Understanding	Phase 3: Action
Confidence website	Confidence website (project	Prototype for field trials
Presentations by consortium members	results) Workshops held by	Confidence publications (project results – journals
Project folder (focus on	Confidence members on different related Confidence	and conferences)
general project information)	topics	Press releases to selected mailing lists
Presentations at conferences and workshops	Presentations at conferences and workshops	
Press releases to selected mailing lists	Basic and advanced training for health professionals and collaborators in social care organisations	
	Articles in academic / special interest journals	
	Electronic newsletter	
	Press releases to selected mailing lists	

#### 3.6 **Publication schedule**

In addition, following the availability of major project results we will produce various promotion materials to support our dissemination effort. This following publication schedule provides a rough timetable of planned project publications, using different channels (print, electronic) and instruments (website, folders, press releases, conference and journal publications etc.).

Publication Schedule		12	13	/2013	13 13	13 14	14	14	14	14	15		Target Audience		
	Q3/201	Q4/201	Q1/201	02/20	Q3/2013	Q4/2013	Q1/2014	02/2014	03/2014	Q4/2014	Q1/2015	02/20	AAL community	System users	Dissemination level (1)
Launch interim Confidence website	х												х	х	AW
Launch Confidence website				х									х	х	AW/U
Project folder 1: General project information				х									х		AW
Presentation at conferences / events		х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х		AW/U/A
Presentation in special interest groups	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	AW/U
Project folder 2: Focus on Confidence system						х							х		U
News on website				х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	AW/U
Prototype						х					х			х	U/A
Press releases	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	AW/U/A
(e-)Journal, conference articles / publications	х		х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х		AW/U/A
Project folder 3: Focus on system and trial results							х				х		x		U/A
(1) AW = Awareness / U = Understanding / A = Actio	n														

## 4 Concrete activities and measurement

#### 4.1 Activities and Events

### 4.1.1 Conferences, Workshops

Dates of relevant events and conferences that we might visit are not yet available. This will be the focus of the second version of this dissemination plan that will be published in month 18 of the project (November 2013)

Conference/Workshop	When	Primary target audience / topics for dissemination
AAL Forum Eindhoven	24.9 – 27.9.2012	Project presentation
		International AAL community
Vorlesungsreihe "Wohn- und Lebensformen im Alter(n)"	3.10.2012	Project presentation
AAL Forum Styria	16.10.2012	Project presentation
		National AAL community in Austria
IT-LAW.AT Symposium	07.11.2012	Project presentation
2012 "Gesundheit-Recht-IT"		National AAL and eHealth community in Austria
6. Deutscher AAL Kongress	2223.01.2013	Project presentation
2013		AAL community Germany, Austria and Switzerland - booth
Regional Conference on Family Medicine, entitled "The first line in health care" Conferinta regionala "Medicina de familie - prima linie in asistenta medicala" Braila, Romania	18 - 20.10.2012 Annual event	Project presentation: aim, objectives and impact included in the presentation entitled as "Ambient Assisted Living (AAL) – a new challenge for the European Commission's programs on active and healthy Aging"
The Forum of Durable Development, Romanian Academy, Bucharest	28.11.2012	Project presentation: aim, objectives and impact included in the presentation entitled "3P Medicine in Romania – part of the Strategic Plan of the European Innovation

		Partnership on Active and Healthy Aging"
Fachtag neuro psycho	22.02.2013	Project presentation
geriatrie		National AAL community in Austria
eHealth2013	23.5. – 24.5.2013	User Requirements
		National and international AAL community
BrainAging SOP-HRD	May 2013	Project presentation
Project, Bucharest, Romania		AAL community in Romania
VitaTertia-Zyklus Demenz	13.06.2013	Project presentation, user requirements
Pflegekongress 2013	2829.11.2013	Project presentation
EU Summit on active and	13 - 14.06.2013	Project presentation
healthy ageing: An action agenda for European cities and Communities in Dublin,		AAL apps in integrated community care
Ireland		Smart homecare of the elderly
AAATE 2013 - 12th	19 - 22.09.2013	Project presentation
European AAATE Conference (Association for the Advancement of		Smart homecare of the elderly
Assistive Technology in Europe)		Ethical and legal aspects in elderly smart care
AAL Forum Norrköping	24.9 - 26.9.2013	System Architecture
		International AAL community
23rd Annual Conference of	10.10 - 12.10.2013	Project presentation
Alzheimer Europe, Malta		End-users and international AAL community
AAL Kongress 2014	21.1 – 22.1.2014	Training concept and organization of the field trials
		AAL community Germany, Austria and Switzerland
AAL Forum 2014 Bucharest	9.9 – 12.9.2014	Business cases
		International AAL community
13th Int. Geneva/Springfield Symposium on Advances in Alzheimer Therapy, Geneva,	26 - 29.03.2014	Project presentation

Switzerland		
Smart homecare of the elderly in dementia		
The 8th World Congress on Controversies in Neurology (CONy), Berlin, Germany	08 - 11.05.2014	Project presentation
Regional Conference on Family Medicine, entitled "The first line in health care" Conferinta regionala "Medicina de familie - prima linie in asistenta medicala" - Editia a IX-a, 2014, Braila, Romania	Annual event	Ethical and legal aspects in elderly smart care
AAL Kongress 2015	Annual event	TBD
eHealth2015	18. – 19.6.2015	evaluated effects of the system usage within the field trials
		National and international AAL Community
Alzheimer's Europe, 2015	Annual event	Smart homecare of the elderly in dementia
Regional Conference on Family Medicine, entitled "The first line in health care" Conferinta regionala "Medicina de familie - prima linie in asistenta medicala" - Editia a IX-a, 2014, Braila, Romania	Annual event	AAL community in Romania

## 4.1.2 Publishing Activities

(e-) Journal/Magazine	Topics for dissemination of results
Aging	Parts of the end-user tests
Alzheimer's and Dementia	Experiences of the end-users using Confidence
	Evaluation of needs and preferences of dementia people
	Smart apps for carers of dementia people

das AALMagazin	Presentation of the Confidence project
EPMA Journal	Personalization of smart apps for dementia people
	Variability of needs for care in people with dementia
LNCS	User requirements detection
OVE Österreichischer Verband für Elektrotechnik	GIT-Newsletter "Ambient Assisted Living"
Post-Media "terz Post"	Presentation of the Confidence project

## 4.1.3 Community Events

Community Event	Topics for dissemination of results
Scenario workshop	Project presentation at Hilfswerk Salzburg in July 2012; scenario development with secondary end-users
	Project presentation at AAIF in Bucharest; scenario development with the secondary end-users, Sept. 2012
	Project presentation at Swisscom together with terzStiftung and Eichenberger Szenographie; scenario development with secondary end-users from the terzStiftung
Stakeholder workshop	Project presentation and workshop with primary and secondary end-users in Austria
	Hilton Hotel Bucharest. Project presentation, discussions and questionnaire interviews with stakeholders and Confidence Community Romania draft, Sept 2012
	A second meeting with stakeholders for Confidence Community-Romania building is held in 2013 in Bucharest
Knowledge exchange	Meeting with Helga Rohra in Munich to discuss the Confidence idea and the planned use cases
	Meeting at Roter Faden in Lucerne to discuss the Confidence idea and the Swiss scenario
	After the trials knowledge exchange workshops will be held with professional care givers who supported the participants during the trials
Information workshop(s)	During the recruiting phase in Austria 2 information workshops in two regions of Salzburg are planned. These workshop are also used for community

	building
	During the recruiting phase in Switzerland 2 information workshops in two regions of Switzerland are planned.
Training workshop(s)	Before the test phase of Confidence 2 training workshops will take place in the two test regions
	Before the test phase of Confidence that will take place in the AAIF's premises in Bucharest
	Before the test phase of Confidence 2 training workshops will take place in the two test regions of Switzerland

# 4.2 Monitoring and measuring the success of Confidence dissemination activities

As we do not have any experience concerning the kind of response our dissemination efforts will receive among our target groups, we have not yet defined any target measures for measuring the success of our dissemination efforts for the first phase of the project.

Possible indicators we consider are:

- Website access
- Other relevant website links to Confidence
- Press clippings / occurrences of Confidence in other media, including citations in publications, forums, blogs
- Posters presented
- Papers submitted to conferences and journals

## 5 Material

#### 5.1 Corporate Identity and Design

With the Confidence corporate identity and design we strive to harmonize the appearance of all Confidence publications for public and official use.

#### 5.1.1 The Confidence Logo

The logo transports, on a visual level, the central aim of the project - Confidence creates mobility safeguarding services and a supportive environment for individuals with cognitive impairments. The community of all stakeholders in the project is symbolized by the circular background area. Inside this area, the open ring circles protectively around a dot, representing the person in need. The circle, as the basic shape of the logo, creates a calming and restful visual anchor and helps the patients to focus. The design is ensuring that the logo can be used both positive (on a light background) and negative (on dark background) and is easy adaptable for different applications (print, web, mobile app).

### 5.1.2 Colour scheme and Typography

#### Colors

Three main colors define the appearance of Confidence - white as a background in the positive application and as a contrasting color for negative applications. Dark brown - as the background color for negative applications and as a contrasting color in positive applications. Beige - as midrange color for positive and negative applications.

The choice of the main color Brown is based on the derivation of wood colors. The warm earth tones are soothing and allow, in combination with white, high contrasts - two important factors for patients with cognitive impairment and elderly people in general. Moreover, the choice of colors allows the use of various accent colors, like red, green, blue, yellow.

#### Typography

The Confidence typeface is called «Europe». It is a modern sans serif typeface combining geometric reduction and humanistic vitality. The rounded forms support the warmth of the colors of Confidence. Furthermore Europe offers a very good legibility and is ideal for people with visual impairments. It is used in a minimum size of 12 points.

#### 5.2 Printed products

In the course of the project various print products will be published, to inform about the project (supporting all phases of dissemination) and to disseminate project results. These include:

#### 5.2.1 Project brochure

A brochure will be part of the Confidence information package in the first phases this will be more a project description later one the brochure will be more a product description.

#### 5.2.2 Project poster

A project poster will be produced in phase 2, showing an overview of Confidence, the overall system, the stakeholders and the services available. It can be used at conferences and various presentations. It will be updated according to the progress of the project.

#### 5.2.3 Presentation template

A Power Point template, in accordance with the Confidence corporate design, is already available for all members of the consortium. It serves as basis for all presentations regarding Confidence.

#### 5.2.4 Word template

A Word template, in accordance with the Confidence corporate design, is already available for all members of the consortium. It serves as basis for all publications regarding Confidence.

#### 5.3 Digital products

#### 5.3.1 Software Prototypes

Will be tested and evaluated during two field trials. Results will be reported.

#### **5.3.2 Training Material**

Training material will be part of the Confidence information package at the beginning of each field trial and will contain the manuals, test methodology and guidelines on how to use the various Confidence services. A more detailed description of these activities will be provided in the second version of this dissemination plan.

#### 5.3.3 Project Website(s)

The Confidence project website is the main dissemination channel to widely inform interested audiences about the general project idea, the concrete project objectives and the benefits for the main target groups. The website can be reached under: <u>www.confidence4you.eu</u>.



The website shows general project information as well as details. The applications which have been developed are presented and videos which were generated within the project are provided. Further activities which happen in the projects are documented in the news section. Public documents can be downloaded. All partners are presented on our project website.

AAIF's website www.brainaging.ro will promote the Confidence project results and impact in cooperation with the Confidence project consortium.

#### References

Harmsworth, S., Turpin, S. (2000): Creating an Effective Dissemination Strategy: An expanded interactive Workbook for Educational Development Projects. http://www.innovations.ac.uk/btg/resources/publications/dissemination.pdf (Last visited: February 18, 2013).

Kotler, P.; Andreasen, A.R. (1996): Strategic Marketing for Non-Profit Organizations. (5th ed.). Upper Saddle River: Prentice Hall.

EC – European Commission (2006): http://ec.europa.eu/health/ph\_information/dissemination/echi/docs/dementia2\_en.pdf (Last visited: 15 February 2013).

Ferri C. P. et al. (2005): Global prevalence of dementia: a Delphi consensus study. Lancet, 366, 2112–2117.

Hughes, C. P., Berg, L., Danziger, W. L., Coben, L. A., & Martin, R. L. (1982): A new clinical scale for the staging of dementia. The British Journal of Psychiatry, 140(6), 566-572.